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December 5, 2017 
 
Vincent G. Bradley 
Chairman 
New York State Liquor Authority 
80 S. Swan Street, 9th Floor   
Albany, New York 12210  
 
Re: Siren Retail Corporation  
 d/b/a Starbucks Reserve Roastery 
 61 Ninth Avenue (14/15) 
  
Dear Chairman Bradley: 
 
Manhattan Community Board 4 (MCB4) recommends denial of a new on-
premise liquor license for Siren Retail Corporation d/b/a Starbucks Reserve 
Corporation, 61 Ninth Avenue (14/15) because granting this license would not be 
in the public interest.  The proposed establishment is a very large venue (600+ 
persons) in an already saturated part of our district and the applicant – which 
apparently has minimal experience in operating such a large liquor-serving 
establishment – has been unwilling to reduce the footprint of the licensed portion 
of the premises and/or the hours of operation nor has it provided a meaningful 
security plan or traffic plan. 
 
This establishment falls within the 500 foot rule as there are 24 (twenty-four) 
OP liquor licenses within 500 feet of this address (per the SLA’s website) which 
include multiple establishments with very large capacities and late hours.  An 
applicant of this size, which seeks to stay open until 2:00 am nightly, would add 
to the problems accompanying an over-saturation of licensed establishments in 
very close proximity, including increased traffic and excessive late night noise.  
This establishment is only one block away from a large residential development 
for low-income tenants who are already suffering from the continuous honking of 
late-night traffic.  
 
MCB4’s Business License and Permits Committee (BLP) has tried to stay in 
conversation with the applicant over the last five months to develop a mutually 
acceptable set of stipulations that address the concerns of both the community 
and the applicant, but to no avail.  After two appearances before the BLP 
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Committee in early summer, the applicant has withdrawn from discussion and 
refused to engage in any further dialogue with MCB4. 
 
The proposed venue is a large multi-storied space beginning at ground level in a 
newly constructed commercial building. The central focus of the space will be the 
coffee roasting machinery where people will learn about coffee bean roasting and 
be able to “chat with a coffee specialist.”  In addition to the restaurant, there will 
be a packing room and a “coffee library with space for groups to meet and learn.”  
MCB4 has concerns about the expansiveness of the venue providing differing 
functions not all compatible with alcohol consumption.  For this reason, the BLP 
Committee advocated a stipulation limiting the area covered by the OP license. 
 
MCB4 also believes that the applicant should prepare and submit a more detailed 
security plan.  The one submitted consists of only a single paragraph.  
Additionally, the proposed venue has a capacity of 683 people and an expected 
maximum use figure of 620 (including employees).  It is expected to be a 
destination spot drawing people to the already densely used pedestrian sidewalks 
and cars to the heavily trafficked streets adjacent to the venue’s site.  The 
applicant submitted no traffic plan.  It would be helpful to MCB4 if it did so.   
 
The applicant first appeared at the June 13, 2017 meeting of the BLP Committee 
and agreed to and signed a series of proposed stipulations (attached hereto).  The 
BLP Committee voted unanimously to recommend that the application with its 
stipulations be approved by SLA.  The next day, the applicant notified MCB4 that 
upon further thinking it decided it could not limit alcohol consumption only to 
certain areas of the premises.  The applicant wanted more time to consider the 
operating ramifications.   
 
The applicant appeared again at the July 11, 2017 meeting of the BLP Committee. 
The Committee expressed its concerns about an establishment that proposed to 
serve alcohol to up to 600 people and until as late as 2:00 a.m. and asked the 
applicant to consider either limiting the size of the licensed portion of the 
premises or choosing an earlier closing time.  Following the July 11 BLP 
Committee meeting, the applicant requested that the matter not be voted on by 
the full MCB4 Board as it was still determining if it could agree to the proposed 
stipulations; it expected to have an answer by mid-August.  By the end of August, 
the applicant definitively stated that it could not agree to a stipulation limiting 
the areas of alcohol consumption and was willing to accept a “negative 
resolution” from the full MCB4Board.   
 
MCB4 invited the applicant to attend the October 10, 2017 meeting of the BLP 
Committee to continue discussing the issue in an attempt to arrive at a mutually 
acceptable compromise.  The applicant informed MCB4 that it would not be 
attending the meeting and wrote reiterating its position about its inability to 
separate functioning areas of its venue – without proposing alternate ways to 
address the reasonable community concerns of size, hours, security and traffic, 
all critical to ensuring that this license is in the public interest.  The applicant 
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apparently believes that the SLA will agree with it and sees no reason to continue 
the conversation with the community.  The applicant’s emails to MCB4 
communicated the unbending attitude of an applicant believing itself somehow 
special and apart from other applicants with no need to engage in dialogue with 
the community in which it proposes to be a neighbor.  As it stands, this proposed 
establishment is clearly not in the public interest, given the 24 OP licensed 
premises within 500 feet and the lack of any reasonable planning to mitigate 
noise, traffic and security concerns. 
 
Should the Liquor Authority nonetheless decide to grant a license here, MCB4 
requests that the attached stipulations be made part of the method of operation 
for this establishment, including the following:  

• Live music will be limited to no more than four (4) unamplified 
performers; 

• Alcohol sales and consumption will be limited to the mezzanine floor 
and/or the restaurant space located in the south section of the first floor; 

• Applicant will submit detailed security and traffic plans and will adhere to 
their terms; and  

• Once the building is finished, applicant will provide MCB4 with the report 
of a certified sound engineer and implement its recommendations. 

 
For the reasons stated above, MCB4 requests that the present application be 
denied unless the stipulations outlined above are incorporated into 
the applicant’s method of operation to be indicated on the license. 
 
Thank you for your attention and cooperation with this application. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
                                                        [Signed on 12/5/17]                  [Signed on 12/5/17] 
Delores Rubin 
Chair 
 

Burt Lazarin 
Co-Chair 
Business Licenses & 
Permits Committee  

Frank Holozubiec 
Co-Chair 
Business Licenses & Permits 
Committee  

 


















































